
Document last changed: 11/25/2008 10:28 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, December 01, 2008 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

5:00 to 7:00 p.m. Reception for Commissioner Bowden   
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of November 17, 2008 Minutes   

Item 2 Recognition of out going Commissioner Bowden   

Item 3 Recognition of out going Chairman    

Item 4 The Honorable Judge Cole   to give the Oath of Office for newly 
elected Commissioners 

Item 5 Election of Chairman 

Item 6 Election of Vice Chairman   

Item 7 Approval of Agenda 

Item 8 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 9 Sheila Tyler, Presentation  on History of Moyock Book 

Item 10 Division of Air Quality  presentation on lowering of standard 
ambient air quality 

Item 11 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-55 Christopher J. Susko: Text 
amendment to the UDO to allow a limousine service as a permitted 
use in the Agricultural zoning district. 

Item 12 Currituck Chamber to present Annual Program of Work   

1



Document last changed: 11/25/2008 10:28 AM 

 
Item 13 Consent Agenda: 

1. Resolution authorizing exchange of property Whalehead 
Section 7 

2. Budget Amendments 
3. Approval of Work First Plan  
4. Lower Currituck Fire Department request to purchase new 

vehicle 

Item 14 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 15 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
November 17, 2008 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its 
regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in 
the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members 
present:  Chairman Nelms, Commissioners Bowden, Gregory, 
Taylor and Etheridge. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Chairman Nelms presented the invocation. 
 
Approval of Agenda  
 
Commissioner Gregory moved to add to consent agenda 
approval of agreement with ABC Enforcement and authorize 
the Sheriff to execute.  Commissioner Bowden seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
Item 2 Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Discussion on NC Division of Aging Service Breach   

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action  PB 04-71 Swan Beach Corolla, LLC: 
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance, Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, to create an Off Road 
Historic Village Commercial Overlay District. 

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action  PB 04-72 Swan Beach Corolla, LLC: 
Request to establish an Off Road Historic Village Commercial 
Overlay District on approximately 25.77 acres.  The property is 
located on Ocean Pearl Road north of the intersection of Albatross 
Lane, Swan Beach.  Tax Map 101, Lot 1, and Tax Map 101A, Lots C & 
D Section 1, Fruitville Township. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-50 Currituck County Planning 
Board:  Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance, Table of Permissible Uses, to allow wastewater 
treatment plants with a Special Use Permit. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-41 Bissell Professional Group - 
Text Amendment for RO2 Roads and Lots:  Request to amend UDO 
Chapter 9: Infrastructure; Chapter 2: Zoning Districts; and 
Chapter 10: Subdivision Requirements to allow existing larger 
parcels to be re-subdivided into open space subdivisions in the 
RO2 zoning district with sand roads that follow the configurations 
of previously approved roads and lots (Carova Beach, Swan Beach, 
etc.). 

Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-53 Morrison/Myers (Horgan):  
Request to rezone approximately 119.96 acres from Agricultural (A) 

3



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   2 

to Residential (R).  The property is located at 291 West Side 
Lane, Tax Map 112, Lot 3C, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 9 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-48 Currituck Marina/Horgan:  
Request to establish a Conditional District – Planned Unit 
Development Overlay Zone (CD-PUD) on approximately 119.96 acres.  
The property is located at 291 West Side Lane, Tax Map 112, Lot 
3C, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 10 Consideration of Bid Award for RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser-
Mainland Water System Upgrades   

Item 11 Consideration and Action  on Member Waste Management Agreement 
with Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority 

Item 12 Consideration and Action  on Agreement for operation of Transfer 
Station with Republic Services of NC, LLC 

Item 13 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget amendments 
2. Approval of November 3, 2008, Minutes 
3. Co-Signature Authority-North Carolina Cooperative Extension 
4. Charge to Tax Collector Levy on Motor Vehicles for August 

Renewals 

Item 14 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 15 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Budget Amendments 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Nelms stated that the Board has received an award 
from the North Carolina Board of Education for working so 
well with the Board of Education.  The award was presented 
at their annual conference in Greensboro. 

Dean Gregory, thanked the Board for working with the 
Northern Outer Banks Beach Task Force on improving the 4-
wheel drive area. 

Marshall Cherry, requested the Board to adopt a conflict of 
interest policy. 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated that Commissioner Bowden 
had no conflict with voting on Item 4. 

4



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   3 

There being no further comments, Chairman Nelms closed the 
public comment period. 

Discussion on NC Division of Aging Service Breach   

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, stated that an employee with 
the Division of Aging had her laptop computer stolen.  The 
computer contained information from a Division database.  
Seniors were asked to take steps to insure their 
information was not used to obtain credit.  Seniors are 
requesting that the State take a more proactive role to 
keep this information safe. 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to send a letter to the state 
to take more of the burden with the cost of helping 
seniors.  Commissioner Gregory seconded the motion. Motion 
carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 04-71 Swan Beach Corolla, 
LLC: Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, to 
create an Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay 
District. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 

Bissell Professional Group and Currituck County Board of Commissioners have 
requested an amendment to the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 4: 
Overlay Districts, and the Official Zoning Atlas.  The proposed amendment has been submitted in 
conjunction with an overlay rezoning request of 25.77 acres in the Northern most part of Swan 
Beach Subdivision.  The overlay rezoning request is contingent upon the approval of this 
amendment request.  (A copy of this proposed amendment is attached for your review).   

 
The Staff’s concerns are the following: 
 
• Approval of this amendment and subsequent zoning request would create an increase in 

traffic along the beach, currently the only way to get to and from the site.  There is a concern 
that this additional traffic will endanger people who choose to recreate along these secluded 
beaches.     

• The Currituck County Fire Marshall has concerns about the water availability for fire 
suppression for the proposed buildings since there is no county water available.  The North 
Carolina Building Code, Vol., Fire Prevention Code specifically mentions requirements for 
commercial areas such as all weather driving surfaces, proper turning radius, and water 
availability.  Additionally, the NC Building Code restricts the height of commercial buildings to 
35 feet in areas where there is no aerial fire apparatus.  The proposal is calling for a height 
limitation of 42 feet.   

• There appears to be an area of the northern part of this proposed site that overlaps into the 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife property as shown on the property survey.  This boundary dispute 
should be resolved prior to any approval.  

• According to FEMA maps, the property is located almost entirely in the 100 year floodplain 
and extends approximately 700 feet in the new VE (high risk) area as shown of the new 
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).  A concern has also been raised regarding how this 
proposal if built would affect the FEMA flood insurance rating for other structures in this area.    

5



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   4 

• Staff would like to have an Environmental Impact Study be prepared for the site to study the 
current verses proposed conditions, especially in the area of stormwater, wastewater 
treatment, access to the site, and how the proposed development and nearby properties will 
be affected by the CBRS Zone (Coastal Barrier Resource System).    

 

Staff is recommending denial on the basis that this proposal would create further safety 
concerns for the recreating public using the northern beaches as well as the residents of the area.  
It’s the staff’s position that the Off Road Historic Commercial Overlay District would have more of 
an adverse impact on the fragile environment in this area of the Outer Banks than the traditional 
residential development in the RO2 zone.     

 

PLANNING BOARD On April 12, 2005 the Planning Board reviewed this  
RECOMMENDATION: request and recommended denial. 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION; 

Mr. Bell asked why the height limitation was being increased. 
 
Mr. Bissell said that the purpose is to allow a more attractive structure, similar to the old Nags 
Head lifesaving station structure. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what accessory lodging units are. 
 
Mr. Bissell said that accessory lodging units are separate bungalow type structures. 
 
Mr. Bell asked how water and sewer concerns would be addressed. 
 
Mr. Bissell said they’d be provided on site, regulated by the State. 
   
Mr. Hawley asked how they proposed to get the supplies to that end of the beach.  Linens, food, 
etc. 
 
Mr. Bissell said the same is now and that traffic would not be different than it is now, and cited 
examples of the log trucks and such that are going in now to build homes.  The issues presented 
by the Fire Marshall could be addressed at the design stage. 
 
Mr. Ferguson asked if there would be a sprinkler type fire suppression system. 
 
Mr. Bissell said yes.  
 
Gene Snow, co-director of Corolla Wild Horse fund, said that this will open the door to 
commercial development and the horses will be eliminated.  The horses have been designated as 
a NC cultural resource.  They have no where else to go, they have been pushed to the outer 
limits. 
 
Tom Hudak, President of Swan Beach property owner’s assn., spoke on behalf of the 
membership of the association.  97% of the people are in agreement to preserve the area as is 
and spoke against the amendment. 
 
Ron Darrow, resident of Carova, said he and his wife wanted to see the area stay as it is as well.  
He is afraid that this will be the first of many commercial developments in this area, and spoke 
against the amendment.   
 
Nyla Johnson, Corolla Wild Horse fund, lives in Moyock and works at the beach.   She spoke 
against the proposed amendment and the preservation of the horses. 
 
Gene Walters, resident, spoke against the amendment. 

6



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   5 

 
Doris Jordan, Norfolk, spoke about the beautiful environment and spoke against the amendment.   
She said the investors are the only ones who will benefit from this proposal and the environment 
is the issue, not the money that will be made. 
 
Carl Newton, resident of Swan Beach, spoke against the amendment and for the preservation of 
the environment in the area. 
 
Linda Spencer, resident, spoke against the amendment.  
 
Bill Vann, Fire Chief of Carova Beach, said a letter was written by the fire dept expressing 
concerns about fire issues.  The fire department cannot get high enough in the air in the event of 
a fire and wonders if the developer or the county is willing to provide manpower to this area. 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to deny the request as presented.  Mr.  Keel seconded the request.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
Since the Planning Board meeting the applicant has made some slight modifications to the 
text amendment.  The changes include reducing the maximum height of the buildings 
down to 35’, eliminating bridal trails and stables.  The maximum amount of accessory 
lodging units was changed from 15 – 2 bedroom units to 10 bedrooms per acre. 

PB 04-71 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
Bissell Professional Group and Currituck County Board of Commissioners requests the following 
amendment to the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance: 
 

PB 04-71:  Amendment to Chapter 4: Overlay Districts of the UDO to create an Off Road 
Historic Village Commercial Overlay District. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That the following sections be amended: 
 
Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, Section 4.8 Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay  
 
1. The Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District is a floating district intended to provide 

a vital, place-appropriate, and community-enhancing area of limited commercial activities to serve 
existing and developing residential subdivisions in the County.  These uses are in addition to the 
RO2 uses authorized in Chapter 2. 

 
2. The Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District designation shall only apply to 

contiguous parcels of land greater than 20 acres with common ownership, and shall have a 
specific height limitation of 42 35 feet. 

 
3. The Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District designation shall only apply to parcels 

within the RO2 zoning district. 
 
4. Permitted Uses - The following uses shall be permitted by right and require only a zoning 

permit(s): 
 

a. Post Office  
b. Fire/Emergency Medical/Sheriff’s Satellite Office (County leased facilities) 
c. Churches, Synagogues, and Temples 
d. Convenience Stores 

7



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   6 

e. Inn (not to exceed 50 bedrooms) 
f. Real Estate Offices 
g. Professional Offices 
h. Accessory lodging units not to exceed 15 – 2 bedroom units (30 bedrooms total) 10 

bedrooms per acre 
 

5. Conditional Uses - The following uses may be permitted subject to the requirements of this district 
and additional regulations and requirements imposed by the Board of Commissioners: 

 
a. Retail Shops 
b. Seafood Market 
c. Theatres 
d. Outdoor recreation areas, including parks, picnic areas, nature trails, bridle paths, riding 

stables, playgrounds, boat ramps, and customary concessions connected therewith 
e. Restaurants- Restaurants maybe permitted subject to other requirements of this chapter and 

provided that the following minimum conditions be met: (i) the restaurant shall not feature a 
drive-though window service whereby patrons are served while seated in a motor vehicle; 
and (ii) the restaurant shall include facilities for indoor seating and consumption of food 
and/or beverages. 

 
6. Dimensional Requirements – Unless otherwise specified in this ordinance, dimensional standards 

in Chapter 2 shall apply. 
 

7. Specific Development Requirements: 
 

a. Street Design and Construction Standards 
 

(i) All streets serving any uses within the Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay 
District shall be designed to meet the requirements of NCDOT. 

 
(ii) "Hatteras" Ramps, a minimum of 24 feet in width shall be provided in those areas that 

are consistent with the dynamics and character of the site. 
 
(iii) All streets serving any uses within the Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay 

District shall be constructed in a manner consistent with NCDOT guidelines but will at a 
minimum utilize compounded (compacted) subgrade materials and surfaced with 
minimum of three (3) inches of shell or other similar substance. 

 
(iv) Roadside drainage swales shall be installed a minimum depth of 15 inches with side 

slopes not greater than 3:1.  Associated drainage plans and improvements shall be 
required and approved by the Currituck County Engineer and meet the requirements of 
Chapter 6 of the UDO. 

(v) All construction standards shall be made n accordance with Exhibit A, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference 

 
b. All utilities shall be placed underground for all uses within the Off Road Historic Village 

Commercial Overlay District. 
 

8. Parking 
 

a. All required parking shall meet the use standards in Chapter 8. 
 
b. All vehicle accommodation areas shall be improved in accordance with the street 

construction standards in paragraph 7 (a) above. 
 

9. Signs 

8



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   7 

 
a. All signs shall comply with Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, Outer Banks Overlay District for all 

uses within the Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District. 
 
 
Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or volatile of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing. 

Mark Bissell, Engineer, reviewed the request. 

Gerald Friedman, Developer, reviewed the history of the 
area and requested the Board’s support. 

Brian Plumlee, Attorney, reviewed the 1969 signed plat for 
commercial area and requested the Board to honor its 
agreement signed when it went to record in 1969. 

Rick Carstater, opposed the request. 

Elizabeth White, opposes the request and presented a signed 
petition from residents and tourist. 

Lynne Wilson, stated this request was not consistent with 
the LUP and opposes the amendment. 

Debra Ianucci, opposes the request. 

Jane Overstreet, opposes the request. 

Kim Hoey, opposes the request with traffic concerns. 

Edna Baden, opposes the request. 

Rufus Baldwin, opposes the request. 

Karen McCalpin, expressed concerns with wild horses and 
opposed the request. 

Bob White, Swan Beach Property Owners Association, opposes 
the request. 

Cary Browning, opposes the request. 

Jan DeBlieu, Coastal Federation opposes the request. 

Bob Wright, opposes the request. 

Woody Archer, opposes the request. 

9



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   8 

Mike Hoff, US Fish & Wildlife, opposes the request. 

Richard Baecher, opposes the request. 

Bob Schultz, opposes the request. 

Marie Baecher, opposes the request. 

Marshall Cherry, opposes the request due to fire and EMS 
service. 

Vance Aydlett, opposes the request. 

Chairman Nelms requested the Attorney to give his opinion 
on vested right. 

Ike McRee, Attorney, stated that there was no vested right 
with the 1969 signed plat. 

Commissioner Bowden reviewed the history of businesses that 
did operate in Swan Beach back to the late 1800’s. 

Chairman Nelms closed the public hearing. 

Chairman Nelms moved to deny the text amendment as 
presented with the findings and determination that the 
denial of the text amendment is consistent with the Land 
Use Plan and that the denial of the text amendment is 
reasonable and in the public interest due to denial being 
consistent with the Land Use Plan which furthers the goals 
and objectives of the plan.  Commissioner Gregory seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action PB 04-72 Swan Beach Corolla, LLC: 
Request to establish an Off Road Historic Village 
Commercial Overlay District on approximately 25.77 acres.  
The property is located on Ocean Pearl Road north of the 
intersection of Albatross Lane, Swan Beach.  Tax Map 101, 
Lot 1, and Tax Map 101A, Lots C & D Section 1, Fruitville 
Township. 

deleted 

Public Hearing and Action PB 08-50 Currituck County 
Planning Board:  Request to amend the Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance, Table of Permissible Uses, 
to allow wastewater treatment plants with a Special Use 
Permit. 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to table. Chairman Nelms 
seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

10



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   9 

Public Hearing and Action PB 08-41 Bissell Professional 
Group - Text Amendment for RO2 Roads and Lots:  Request to 
amend UDO Chapter 9: Infrastructure; Chapter 2: Zoning 
Districts; and Chapter 10: Subdivision Requirements to 
allow existing larger parcels to be re-subdivided into open 
space subdivisions in the RO2 zoning district with sand 
roads that follow the configurations of previously approved 
roads and lots (Carova Beach, Swan Beach, etc.). 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed this amendment. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben E. Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Date: November 10, 2008 
 
Re:  PB 08-50 Wastewater Treatment Plants 
 
 
The Currituck County Planning Board recently requested that staff develop a text amendment to 
require a special use permit for wastewater treatment plants.  Currently the Unified Development 
Ordinance permits wastewater treatment plants (utility facilities) “by-right” in all zoning districts.  
This means that a wastewater treatment plant would be permitted in any zoning district with an 
administrative approval. 
 
The Planning Board is recommending that a special use permit be required for the establishment 
of any wastewater treatment plant due to its often incompatible nature with surrounding land 
uses.  The special use permit process requires a public hearing and approval by the Board of 
Commissioners, rather than relying on an administrative approval.  Considering the range of 
secondary impacts commonly associated with a wastewater treatment plant, this type of oversight 
is common in other governmental jurisdictions. 
 
A copy of the proposed text amendment and meeting minutes from the October Planning Board 
meeting are attached.  Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at 232-
6029. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wastewater Treatment Plants 
PB 08-50 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts and Chapter 17: Definitions to establish and require 
a special use permit for wastewater treatment facilities. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 

11



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   10 

Item 1: That Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table is amended by adding in alphabetical order the 
following underlined language:  
 

Use LU
C Zoning Districts Special 

Other  A R
A R RO

1 
RO
2 

R
R 

G
B C LB

H 
L
M 

H
M 

Requirement
s 

Wastewate
r Treatment 
Facilities 

IV S S S S S S S S S S S  

 
 
Item 2: That Section 17.2 Definitions is amended by adding in alphabetical order the following 
underlined language: 
 
Section 17.2 Definitions 
 
Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
Any facility used for the treatment of sewage. The term shall not include on-site septic tank systems 
or similar in-ground systems approved by Albemarle Regional Health Services.  
 
 
Item 3: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
No discussion. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance to allow wastewater treatment plants with a Special Use Permit.  Mr. 
West seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing. 

Mark Bissell, Engineer, reviewed the request. 

Marshal Cherry questioned open space. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Nelms closed the 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Bowden moved to approve with findings of fact 
and is consistent with the Land Use Plan and is reasonable 
in the public interest.  Commissioner Gregory seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  08-53 Morrison/Myers (Horgan):  
Request to rezone approximately 119.96 acres from 
Agricultural (A) to Residential (R).  The property is 
located at 291 West Side Lane, Tax Map 112, Lot 3C, Poplar 
Branch Township. 

12



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   11 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING DATE: November 17, 2008 

Zoning Map Amendment:  
PB 08- 53 Currituck Marina 

 
 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  To rezone 119.96 acres from Agricultural (A) to Residential (R) 
 
LOCATION:  291 West Side Lane, adjacent to Kilmarlic 
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 112, Parcel 3C, Poplar Branch Township 

   
OWNER:     Denny Horgan 

291 West Side Lane 
Powells Point, NC 27966 

 
AGENT/APPLICANT:  Tim Morrison/Edward Myers 
    2600 South Virginia Dare Trail 
    Nags Head, NC 27959 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Residential (R) 
 
ZONING HISTORY: The property was zoned Agricultural (A) on April 2, 1989.  

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Undeveloped Conservation 
SOUTH: Albemarle Sound N/A 
EAST: Kilmarlic Subdivision Limited Service 
WEST: Undeveloped Conservation 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped  
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: Mixed use development with public marina 
. 
 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and 

Conservation within the Point Harbor Sub-Area.   
  

Areas designated as Full Service are those parts of the county 
where a broad range of infrastructure and service investments 
have been provided or will be made available by the public 
and/or private sectors. Central wastewater treatment and 
disposal whether public or community is considered reasonable 
in the Full Service Areas.   
 
Base development densities for the Full Service Area is 
contemplated to be 2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-
4 units per acre through overlay zoning.  Commercial 

13



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   12 

development in Full Service Areas should be designed to protect 
and preserve the existing community in scale, architectural style, 
materials, landscaping, and site design. 
 
The purpose of the Conservation class is to provide for the long-
term management and protection of significant, limited, or 
irreplaceable areas. Proper management is needed to conserve 
the natural, cultural, recreational, scenic or biologically 
productive values of these areas. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Point Harbor Sub-Area is to allow this 
area to continue to evolve as a full service community, but with 
better attention to the planning needed to protect residential 
areas and the natural features that make the area so attractive.  
Vegetative buffers should be required/maintained along 
shorelines to preserve public access and open space at the 
waters edge and to protect water quality in the sound 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this 
request: 

 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to 
occur at densities appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND 
DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether the development is 
within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of 
sewage treatment available to the site, the adequacy of 
transportation facilities providing access to the site, and the 
proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services.   
 
POLICY AG6: For areas experiencing intense development 
pressure, new residential development may be allowed to locate 
in COMPACT, VILLAGE-LIKE CLUSTERS, PREFERABLY 
NEAR EXISTING, NON-AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES AND 
SERVICES, or in other locations that will not interfere with 
resource production activities. Overall density shall remain very 
low, with permanent open space, dedicated during the 
development review process, surrounding such clusters of 
homes. 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The site is located within the Jarvisburg Elementary School 

District. The Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department provides 
fire protection for this area. Public water is available to this site 
from the Kilmarlic Subdivision. 

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The site is accessible by vehicle from West Side Lane and 

presumably by boat from the Intracoastal Waterway. 
 
FLOOD ZONE: The entire site is located in Flood Zone AE(7). 
 
WETLANDS: Approximately 95 acres of wetlands are located on the site 

(including the existing lake and canal).  The remaining 23 acres 
primarily consists of uplands. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

primarily non-suitable soils and limited amounts of suitable soils. 
 

 

14



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   13 

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the request to rezone 119.96 

acres from Agricultural (A) to Residential (R) for the following 
reasons: 

 
1. The proposed request is in general compliance with Full 

Service designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the 
Point Harbor Sub-Area Policy Emphasis. 

 
2. The subject property is adjacent to the Kilmarlic subdivision 

and is in keeping with the character of the surrounding area.  
 

3. Adequate infrastructure capacity such as improved roads 
and public water are directly accessible to the site. 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
No discussion. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations to rezone approximately 
119.96 acres from Agricultural (A) to Residential (R) according to the 2006 Land Use Plan. Ms. 
Turner seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing. 

Wayne McCoy, Developer, reviewed the request. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Nelms closed the 
public hearing. 

Chairman Nelms moved to approve with findings of fact and 
is consistent with the LUP.  Commissioner Gregory seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Etheridge 
voting no. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-48 Currituck 
Marina/Horgan:  Request to establish a Conditional District 
– Planned Unit Development Overlay Zone (CD-PUD) on 
approximately 119.96 acres.  The property is located at 291 
West Side Lane, Tax Map 112, Lot 3C, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2008 
Zoning Map Amendment:  

PB 08- 48 Currituck Marina 
 
 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  To establish a Conditional District – Planned Unit Development 
Overlay Zone (CD-PUD) on 119.96 acres 

 
LOCATION:  291 West Side Lane, adjacent to Kilmarlic 

15



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   14 

 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 112, Parcel 3C, Poplar Branch Township 

   
OWNER:     Denny Horgan 

291 West Side Lane 
Powells Point, NC 27966 

 
AGENT/APPLICANT:  Tim Morrison/Edward Myers 
    2600 South Virginia Dare Trail 
    Nags Head, NC 27959 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A): PB 08-53 if approved will establish Residential     
(R) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District-Planned Unit Development Overlay (CD-
PUD) 
 
ZONING CONDITIONS: Uses 

1. Limited to mixed residential uses, neighborhood serving 
retail uses, restaurants, traditional uses associated with a 
marina, and other items contained in the Currituck Marina 
Conceptual Plan. 

2. Maximum gross residential density shall not exceed 2.0 
dwelling units per acre. 

3. No more than 50 residential dwelling units shall receive a 
certificate of occupancy prior to the public marina being fully 
permitted and approved by any local, state, and federal 
regulatory or permitting agency. 

4. No more than 100 residential dwelling units shall receive a 
certificate of occupancy prior to the marina being fully 
operational and open to the public. 

5. No more than 150 residential dwelling units shall receive a 
certificate of occupancy prior to the commercial components 
of the request being approved and fully constructed. 

Transportation 
1. Multimodal pathways a minimum of six feet in width shall be 

provided throughout the development.  This shall include 
interconnected sidewalks, bikeways and natural trails. 

2. Internal pedestrian circulation shall be required for all 
commercial areas through the use of clearly defined 
walkways. 

Landscaping/Screening 
1. All inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands shall remain 

undisturbed.  Delineated CAMA, 404 and 401 wetlands shall 
be placed in a conservation easement or preservation trust 
preventing individual ownership or development. 

2. There shall be no development, land disturbing, or logging 
activities in areas designated by the 2006 Land Use Plan as 
Conservation 

3. Existing mature trees within 300 feet of the mean high water 
mark or 100 feet of any adjacent property line shall be 
identified as a tree conservation area and be preserved to 
the extent practicable. 

4. When developing within 300 feet of the shoreline, 
precedence should be given to “soft” stabilization 
approaches including but not limited to preservation of 
existing vegetation, creation of natural, living shorelines for 
areas needing stabilization, and establishment of vegetative 
buffers. 

16



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   15 

5. In commercial areas every parking space shall be entirely 
located within 120 feet of a landscape island containing a 
minimum of 2 canopy trees, a minimum of 2 inches in caliper 
at time of planting.  Landscape islands shall be a minimum 
of 10 feet in width and 400 square feet in size. 

6. In commercial areas pedestrian plazas or similar shaded 
outdoor seating areas shall be provided at a rate of 100 
square feet for every 2,000 square feet of gross floor area. 

Site Design/Architectural 
1. The proposed development will be in accordance with the 

Currituck Marina conceptual site plan. 
2. Maximum size of an individual commercial building shall not 

exceed 10,000 square feet of gross floor area. 
3. Residential structures shall include vertical and horizontal 

relief in buildings, including but not limited to façade 
articulation and other architectural elements that add visual 
interest; variation in exterior architectural materials or styles; 
and, inclusion of front porches, projecting bays, or 
vestibules. 

4. Commercial structures, including mixed use structures, shall 
be subject to the following requirements: 
a. Building facades shall incorporate the traditional 

architectural style or vernacular of the general area. 
b. Large expanses of blank walls shall be avoided.  

Facades shall incorporate architectural elements that 
add visual interest, including but not limited to variation 
in exterior materials; functioning windows and doorways; 
and, projecting elements such as eaves, cornices, 
canopies, bays, shadow lines, overhangs, porticos and 
colonnades. 

c. Corrugated metal building materials shall not be 
permitted.  Architectural grade finished metal may be 
used as an accent material or on elevations not visible 
from a right-of-way or area designated for residential 
uses. 

 
Water Access 
1. Public access to the waterfront and Albemarle Sound shall 

required and include at a minimum a marina, public boat 
launching and parking, and multimodal pathways. 

2. The marina shall include docking for a minimum of ten 
vessels. 

3. The marina shall participate and become a Certified Clean 
Marina in the North Carolina Clean Marina program. 

4. No permanent structures shall be built within 100 feet of the 
mean high water mark, or on or over a pier. 

5. Waterfront property within 100 feet of the mean high water 
mark shall remain in common open space. 

 
DENSITY: Approximate gross density (including wetlands) – 2.0 du/acre 
 Approximate net density (excluding wetlands) – 10.4 du/acre 
 
ZONING HISTORY: The property was zoned Agricultural (A) on April 2, 1989.  

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Undeveloped Conservation 
SOUTH: Albemarle Sound N/A 

17



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   16 

EAST: Kilmarlic Subdivision Limited Service 
WEST: Undeveloped Conservation 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped  
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: Mixed use development with public marina 
. 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and 

Conservation within the Point Harbor Sub-Area.   
  

Areas designated as Full Service are those parts of the county 
where a broad range of infrastructure and service investments 
have been provided or will be made available by the public 
and/or private sectors. Central wastewater treatment and 
disposal whether public or community is considered reasonable 
in the Full Service Areas.   
 
Base development densities for the Full Service Area is 
contemplated to be 2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-
4 units per acre through overlay zoning.  Commercial 
development in Full Service Areas should be designed to protect 
and preserve the existing community in scale, architectural style, 
materials, landscaping, and site design. 
 
The purpose of the Conservation class is to provide for the long-
term management and protection of significant, limited, or 
irreplaceable areas. Proper management is needed to conserve 
the natural, cultural, recreational, scenic or biologically 
productive values of these areas. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Point Harbor Sub-Area is to allow this 
area to continue to evolve as a full service community, but with 
better attention to the planning needed to protect residential 
areas and the natural features that make the area so attractive.  
Vegetative buffers should be required/maintained along 
shorelines to preserve public access and open space at the 
waters edge and to protect water quality in the sound 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this 
request: 

 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to 
occur at densities appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND 
DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether the development is 
within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of 
sewage treatment available to the site, the adequacy of 
transportation facilities providing access to the site, and the 
proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services.   
 
The applicant has included a zoning condition that prohibits 
development within areas of the site designated as Conservation 
Area by the 2006 Land Use Plan.  There is county water and fire 
protection readily available to the site, as well as vehicular 
access from a State maintained road. The surrounding land uses 
include the Kilmarlic subdivision and golf course, a regional 
health and racquet club, and approximately 25 acres of land 
zoned for multifamily uses (4 du/acre).  Centralized sewage 
treatment is also proposed for the development. 

18



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   17 

 
POLICY PA1: Public access to the sound and ocean waters of 
Currituck County is essential to the quality of life of residents and 
visitors, as well as the economy of the area. The County 
supports the establishment of ADDITIONAL PUBLIC AND 
PRIVATE ACCESS opportunities to the waters of Currituck 
County.  
 
By zoning condition, the subject property is required to provide 
public access to the Albemarle Sound.  The construction of 
residential dwelling units is contingent upon successful 
permitting and operation of the marina. 
 
POLICY PA5: PUBLIC AND PRIVATE MARINAS offering 
access to area waters should be encouraged when developed in 
accordance with the CAMA specific use standards for marinas 
(i.e. docks for more than 10 vessels). Marinas shall not be 
approved, however, that are incompatible with nearby land uses 
or whose designs fail to meet the environmental quality and 
development standards of the County’s Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
The zoning conditions will require the marina to provide docking 
for a minimum of 10 vessels and participate and become a 
Certified Clean Marina in the North Carolina Clean Marina 
program. 
 
POLICY CD8: MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS, properly planned 
from the outset, which allow for a compatible mixture of 
residential and non-residential uses with a pedestrian scale and 
design, are encouraged. 
 
The request includes a mixture of uses including townhomes, 
condominiums, retail uses, a restaurant, and a public marina.  
Pedestrian elements have been included to ensure the 
development is walkable.  
 
POLICY WQ6: Currituck County supports the retention or 
preservation of VEGETATED BUFFERS along the edge of 
drainage ways, streams and other components of the estuarine 
system as an effective, low cost means of protecting water 
quality. 
 
The zoning conditions require the preservation of mature trees 
around the perimeter of the site.  When developing within 300 
feet of the shoreline, precedence should be given to “soft” 
stabilization approaches.  Additionally, property within 100 feet of 
the shoreline shall remain in common open space. 
 
POLICY ML3: The interests of Mainland Area residents in 
having ACCESS TO THE AREA’S OCEAN AND ESTUARINE 
WATERS shall be fostered through County actions to increase 
the number of additional public access sites at a rate 
commensurate with the population growth of the Currituck 
County. Included in the actions taken to increase public access 
shall be a consideration given to transportation needs, including 
boat docks and ferry services. 
 

19



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   18 

The subject property will provide the county’s first direct western 
public access south of the Intracoastal Waterway. 

 
POLICY ES2: NON-COASTAL WETLANDS, including 
FRESHWATER SWAMPS, AND INLAND, NON-TIDAL 
WETLANDS, shall be conserved for the important role they play 
in absorbing floodwaters, filtering pollutants from stormwater 
runoff, recharging the ground water table, and providing critical 
habitat for many plant and animal species. 
 
By zoning condition, all inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands 
shall remain undisturbed and will be placed in a conservation 
easement or preservation trust preventing individual ownership 
or development. 
 
POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL 
FEATURES OF THE SITE, including existing topography and 
significant existing vegetation, shall be encouraged.  COASTAL 
AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be considered part 
of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot 
size or development density. 
 
The permitted gross density of 2 dwelling units per acre is based 
on the total acreage of the tract.  Although wetlands are typically 
included in the county’s UDO density calculations (gross), the 
Division of Coastal Management has indicated they will exclude 
wetlands from their density calculations (net).  This creates a 
conflict between the UDO and Land Use Plan, which may arise 
during the CAMA Major permitting process. 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The site is located within the Jarvisburg Elementary School 

District. The Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department 
(Kilmarlic Station) provides fire protection for this area.  EMS 
coverage is provided from the Grandy Volunteer Fire Department 
Station.  Public water is available to this site from the Kilmarlic 
Subdivision. 

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The site is accessible by vehicle from West Side Lane and 

presumably by boat from the Intracoastal Waterway. 
 
FLOOD ZONE: The entire site is located in Flood Zone AE(7). 
 
WETLANDS: Approximately 95+/- acres of wetlands are located on the site 

(including the existing lake and canal).  The remaining 23+/- 
acres primarily consists of uplands. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

primarily non-suitable soils.  There are limited amounts of 
suitable soils which are located in the areas proposed for 
development. 

 
STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the request to establish a 

Conditional District – Planned Unit Development Overlay Zone 
(CD-PUD) on 119.96 acres for the following reasons: 

 

20



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   19 

4. The proposed request is in general compliance with Full 
Service designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the 
Point Harbor Sub-Area Policy Emphasis. 

 
5. The proposed zoning conditions are consistent with the 

objectives of the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance and 2006 Land Use Plan, and promote 
compatibility between the subject property and surrounding 
area. 

 
6. This request establishes the mainland’s first direct western 

public access south of the Intracoastal Waterway.  
Additionally, the construction of residential units is contingent 
upon proper permitting and operation of the marina, which 
includes becoming a Certified Clean Marina in the North 
Carolina Clean Marina program. (LUP Policies PA1, PA5, 
ML3) 

 
7. The subject property is adjacent to the Kilmarlic subdivision 

and is in keeping with the character of the area.  
Surrounding land uses include a golf course, a regional 
health and racquet club, and approximately 25 acres of land 
zoned for multifamily uses. (LUP Policy HN1) 

 
8. Adequate infrastructure capacity such as improved roads 

and public water are directly accessible to the site.  The 
applicant is also proposing a centralized wastewater system 
which will limit environmental impacts on environmentally 
sensitive areas. (LUP Policy PP2) 

 
9. As depicted on a conceptual site plan submitted as part of 

the application, this request includes a mixture of uses 
including townhomes, condominiums, retail uses, a 
restaurant, and a public marina. (LUP Policy CD8) 

 
10. All inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands will remain 

undisturbed and placed in a conservation easement or 
preservation trust preventing individual ownership or 
development. (LUP policy ES2) 

 
11. The preservation of mature trees around the perimeter of the 

site and adjacent to the shoreline is required.  Additionally, 
property within 100 feet of the shoreline shall remain in 
common open space. (LUP Policy WQ6) 

 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked how many restaurants will be on the site. 
 
Mr. Woody stated there is one restaurant near the waterfront and conceivably another could 
locate in the commercial building. 
 
Mr. West asked if public access to the water will be free to the public. 
 
Mr. Woody stated it will be a free public access where you could launch your boat, but you could 
not dock your boat without a fee. 
 

21



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   20 

Mr. West stated this is a good example of what they intended conditional use zoning to be, which 
spells out what they are going to do.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this is an age restrictive development. 
 
Mr. Woody stated no. 
 
Mr. Morrison stated the development will be geared towards an active retirement age.  
 
Mr. West asked what the total number of units is. 
 
Mr. Morrison stated 240 units. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations to establish a 
Conditional District-Planned Unit Development Overlay Zone (CD-PUD) on approximately 119.96 
acres according to the 2006 Land Use Plan. Mr. Winter seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Chairman Nelms moved to approve with findings of fact and 
is consistent with the LUP.  Commissioner Gregory seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 

Consideration of Bid Award for RO Outfall Pipe and 
Diffuser-Mainland Water System Upgrades   

Chairman Nelms moved to award the bid to Mad Dawg,Inc.,in 
the amount of $982,000.  Commissioner Gregory seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 

Consideration and Action on Member Waste Management 
Agreement with Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management 
Authority 

Commissioner Gregory moved to approve.  Chairman Nelms 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Consideration and Action on Agreement for operation of 
Transfer Station with Republic Services of NC, LLC 

Commissioner Gregory moved to approve.  Commissioner 
Etheridge seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget amendments 
2. Approval of November 3, 2008, Minutes 
3. Co-Signature Authority-North Carolina 

Cooperative Extension 
4. Charge to Tax Collector Levy on Motor Vehicles 

for August Renewals 

22



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   21 

 
Chairman Nelms requested to add a budget amendment for the 
Airport.  Commissioner Gregory seconded the motion. Motion 
carried with Commissioner Etheridge voting no. 
 
Commissioner Etheridge moved to approve consent agenda.  
Commissioner Bowden seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
55818-561000  Professional Serv - Wells                       56,431    

55818-562000  
Professional Serv - H2O 
Plant                        1,425    

55818-563000  
Professional Serv - Dist 
Sys                       11,673    

55818-592003  
H2O Plant - Outfall 
Diffuser                     580,000    

55818-588002  
Contingency - Water 
Plant                     450,149  

55818-588004  Contingency - Tanks                       73,290  
55818-592002  H2O Plant - Ground Storage                      63,907  

55818-593002  
Dist Sys - 14" Tie High 
Cotton                        1,517  

55818-593003  
Dist Sys - 12' Gravel 
Road                         1,296  

55818-593006  
Dist Sys - Tulls Creek 
Booster                      59,370  

                       649,529                    649,529  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

 

Mainland Water Construction (55818) - To close our the ground water storage 
tank, 14" tie line to the High Cotton tank and the 12' gravel road to the tank, to 
transfer residuals from these projects to fund shortfalls for the outfall diffuser and 
to reduce budget for the Tulls Creek Booster Pump which came in under budget 
estimates. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10510-540000  Worker's Compensation                       66,805    
10530-540000  Worker's Compensation                     104,138    
10511-545000  Contract Services - Jail                       10,000  
10350-468000  Sale of Fixed Assets                       10,609  
10390-499900  Fund Balance                     150,334  

23



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   22 

Appropriated 
       
61818-540000  Worker's Compensation                       25,544    
61360-471000  Tap & Connection Fees                       25,544  
       
                       196,487                    196,487  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Sheriff (10510); Emergency Services (10530); Jail (10511); Mainland Water 
(61818) - To increase appropriations for FY 2008 worker's compensation audit 
adjustment. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $160,943. 
  Mainland Water Fund (61) - Increased by $25,544.   
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10640-532005  Supplies - Agriculture                         1,310    
10330-449900  Miscellaneous Grants                         1,310  
       
                           1,310                        1,310  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To increase appropriations to record grant award 
by the NC Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for the Currituck 
County Pesticide Container Recycling Program. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,310. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10550-502000  Salaries - Regular                       26,044    
10550-505000  FICA                            148    
10550-506000  Insurance                         5,363    
10550-507000  Retirement                         2,568    
10550-540000  Worker's Compensation                         1,547    
10550-503000  Salaries - Part Time                       23,996  
10390-499900  Fund Balance                       11,674  

24



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   23 

Appropriated 
       
                         35,670                      35,670  
       
Explanation: 
 

Airport (10550) - To appropriate fund balance to combine two part-time positions 
to one full-time position at the airport. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $11,674. 
 
 

Commissioner’s Report 

County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

 

SPECIAL MEETING 

Tourism Development Authority 

Chairman Nelms called the meeting to order 

Budget Amendments 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to approve the amendments.  
Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
15442-540000  Worker's Compensation   $                    5,380    
15320-415000  Occupancy Tax     $                  5,380  
       
     $                    5,380    $                  5,380  
       
Explanation: Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - To appropriate funds for additional 

25



November 17, 2008, BOC Meeting   24 

 worker's compensation for FY 2008 required after audit. 
Net Budget 
Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $5,380. 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
15447-545000  Contract Services   $                  40,000    
15447-516001  Signs   $                    5,000    
15320-415000  Occupancy Tax     $                45,000  
       
     $                  45,000    $                45,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Related Expenditures (15447) - To appropriate funds 
for shrubs and gravel at public parking areas and for additional signage on the 
Outer Banks. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $45,000. 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 
 
 

26



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Department 
 
Date: November 21, 2008 
 
Re:  PB 08-55 Christopher J. Susko Amendment 
 
 
 
Christopher J. Susko is requesting a text amendment to the UDO to allow a limousine 
service as a permitted use in the Agricultural (A) zoning district.  A limousine service is 
currently not addressed in the UDO and; therefore, is not a permitted use within 
Currituck County. 
 
Initially Staff did not support allowing a taxi service business as a permitted use within 
the Agricultural (A) zoning district due to the potential intrusion into the residential and 
rural character of such areas.  As an alternative, Staff proposed allowing taxi services 
as a permitted use in the General Business (GB), Commercial (C), and Limited 
Business-Hotel (LBH) zoning districts.  During the Planning Board meeting, it was 
suggested that taxi services be permitted in the Agricultural (A) zone with a conditional 
use permit.  Staff feels this alternative provides a reasonable compromise and 
subsequently supports the Planning Board’s recommended changes. 
 
While Mr. Susko submitted a generalized text amendment request, staff has proposed a 
more detailed version as recommended by the Planning Board which is attached 
hereto.  Also find the Planning Board meeting minutes attached. 
 
Should you have additional questions please contact Ben Woody at 232-6029. 

27



 

PB 08-55 Christopher J. Susko 
Page 2 of 4 

PLANNING  BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked how this would work since this was a home based operation in a 
residential area. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the operation could be moved or the lot rezoned. 
 
Mr. Susko stated that this request is for a home office use and he has two limousines. 
Mr. Susko stated he is legal to pick up passengers and take them to Virginia. To be able 
to pick up passengers in Virginia, the Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles application 
requires rezoning compliance verification, which he must comply with and that his home 
base operation is where he resides.  
 
Mr. Midgette asked why this was presented as a text amendment and not a special use 
permit. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that in the Permitted Uses Table it does not address limousine or taxi 
service.  
 
The board discussed a limousine service business as a permitted use within the 
Agricultural zoning district vs. the property being rezoned to commercial or general 
business. The board was concerned with a commercial or general business zoning 
district in an agricultural area. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that the options are to, (1) Allow by right in an Agricultural zoning 
district which is what the applicant requested; (2) To only allow in a commercial district 
which would require the property to be rezoned; or (3) To allow in an Agricultural district 
with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  
 
The Planning Board discussed the length of time of the CUP. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Keel motioned to recommend approval of the text amendment to the UDO to allow a 
limousine service as a permitted use in the Agricultural zoning district with the addition 
of a Conditional Use Permit and the limit of two vehicles.  Mr. West seconded the 
motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 

28



 

PB 08-55 Christopher J. Susko 
Page 3 of 4 

PB 08-55 
UDO Amendment Request 

Christopher J. Susko 
Taxi Service 

 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Chapter 3: Special Requirements. and 
Chapter 17: Definitions to allow a taxi service as a permitted use. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners that the Unified 
Development Ordinance be amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table is amended by adding the following 
language: 
 
Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 
Office & Service  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements 
Taxi Service III C      Z Z Z   3.5.9 
 
Item 2: That Section 3.5 Office and Service Uses is amended by adding the following 
language: 
 
Section 3.5 Office and Service Uses 
 
3.5.9 Taxi  Service 
 
A. The following special requirements shall apply in the GB, C, and LBH Districts: 
 

1. The taxi shall display no form of advertising other than that of the taxi 
company itself. 
 

2. When not in service, vehicles shall be stored in a secure compound, fully 
enclosed with a fence and gate.  The compound surface area shall be 
paved or graveled to not less than three inches deep and compacted and 
graded for proper drainage. 
 

3. The taxi service compound shall be fully screened from adjacent rights-of-
way and residentially zoned properties using a combination of opaque 
fencing and/or evergreen plant materials. 
 

B. The following special requirements shall apply in the A District: 
 

1. The use shall not disturb or intrude on the residential character of the 
surrounding neighborhood. 

 
2. No more than two motor vehicles associated with the taxi service shall be 

permitted on the subject property. 
 

29



 

PB 08-55 Christopher J. Susko 
Page 4 of 4 

 
Item 3: That Section 17.2 Definitions is amended by adding in alphabetical order the 
following language: 
 
Section 17.2 Definitions 
 
Taxi Service 
Transport by vehicle (ex. taxi, limousine) for a single passenger or small group of 
passengers between locations of their choice. 
 
 
Item 4: The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 5: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of     , 2008. 
 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
       
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:     
VOTE:    AYES   NAYS   
************************************************************************************************ 
PLANNING BOARD DATE: November 10, 2008 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:     
VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:    
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:    
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

30



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK 
COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA AUTHORIZING EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Currituck County owns Lot 34-A as shown on that plat entitled in 
part “Whalehead Club, Section 7” dated February 18, 1972 which lot is more particularly 
shown on that plat recorded at Map Book 3, Page 70 of the Currituck County Registry; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Whalehead Properties owns that area of real estate comprising the 
rights-of-way for those streets known as Tuna Street, Sturgeon Street, Barracuda Street, 
Mackerel Street, Coral Street, Sailfish Street, Marlin Street and Perch Streets as more 
particularly shown on those plats of record for Whalehead Club Subdivision recorded in 
the Currituck County Registry and comprising approximately 13.76 acres, the acquisition 
of which will allow for, among other things, the construction and maintenance of 
stormwater management facilities necessary to preserve and protect the public health, 
safety and welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Currituck County and Whalehead Properties desire to make an even 
exchange of real property by which Currituck County will convey the northern one-half 
of its property described herein for Whalehead Properties’ real estate described herein; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 160A-271 of the General Statutes of North Carolina 
authorizes Currituck County to make such an exchange if authorized by its Board of 
Commissioners by a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the board upon at least ten 
days’ public notice; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  Currituck County has given the required public notice and the 
Board of Commissioners is considering this resolution while convened in a regular 
meeting. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for 
Currituck County, North Carolina that: 
 
 Section 1.  The exchange of Lot 34-A as shown on that plat entitled in part 
“Whalehead Club, Section 7” dated February 18, 1972 which lot is more particularly 
shown on that plat recorded at Map Book 3, Page 70 of the Currituck County Registry 
and the real property of Whalehead Properties described herein is authorized. 
 
 Section 2.  The appropriate Currituck County officials are directed to execute the 
appropriate instruments necessary to carry out the exchange. 
 
 Section 3.  This resolution is effective upon its adoption and supersedes any prior 
or conflicting resolution. 
 

31



 
 ADOPTED the 1st day of December, 2008. 
 
      __________________________ 
      Chair 
      Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene,  
Clerk to the Board 
 
 (COUNTY SEAL) 

32



Number 2009039

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10660-545000 Contracted Services 425                            
10660-592000 Planning Project 425                          

10540-545000 Contracted Services 425                            
10540-506000 Insurance Expense 425                          

850                            850                          

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of December 
2008, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Inspections (10540); Planning (10660) - To transfer funds between line items to provide 
funding for the door locking system for the Corolla Office.

33



Number 2009040

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10330-432200 HCCBG - Rev. 3,504$                       
10330-432800 Daycare 52,798$                     
10390-499900 Fund Approriated Balance 27,377$                     
10750-557700 Crisis Intervention 22,554$                     
10752-519700 HCCBG 3,123$                       
10330-431000 DSS Administration - Rev. 56,298$                   
10750-519500 TANF Emergency Asst. 260$                        
10752-519600 Daycare 50,438$                   
10752-519601 Smart Start 2,360$                     

109,356                     109,356                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of December 
2008, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $27,377.

Social Services Administration (10750); Social Services Public Assistance (10752) - To 
record adjustments in State funding allocations in Social Services programs.

34



Number 2009041

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense
65858-532000 Supplies 2,000$                        
65858-561000 Professional Services 2,000$                      

2,000$                        2,000$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of December 2008, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Commons Sewer District (65) - No change.

Moyock Commons Sewer (65858) - Amendment  for lab equipment when the County takes 
over the operation of Moyock Commons in February 2009.

35



Number 2009042

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense
10550-531000 Gas, Oil, Etc 2,000$                        
10550-545000 Contracted Services 2,000$                      

2,000$                        2,000$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of December 2008, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Airport (10550) - To transfer funds between line items for fuel for operations.

36



ucx cb

668

CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED

Meeting Date December 1 2008 Agenda

SUBJECT

county Work First Plan 20102011 Biennium

REQUESTED ACTION

approval of the Work First Plan

Submitted by Carla Mebane Department Social Services

Date submitted November212008 Attachments Yes x No

REVIEW PROCESS

Approved

County Manager

County Attorney

Finance Director

REVIEW COMMENTS

Yes No

Yesl No

Yes No 0
Yes No

37



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

WORK FIRST PLAN 20102011 BIENNIUM
Currituck County Department of Social Services

Contact information
Christal Berry
Carla Mebane
Currituck County Department of Social Services
PO Box 99

Currituck NC 27929
Phone 2522323083
Fax 2522322167
email cberry@cocurrituckncus

cmebane@cocurrituckncus

38



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 2
20102011 BIENNIUM

Table of Contents

SECTION PAGE

I Condition within the County 3

II Planning Process 3

III Outcomes and Goals for the County 4

IV Plans to Achieve the Outcomes and Goals 4

V Administrative

VI Emergency Assistance g

VII Services for Families at or Below 200 of the Poverty Level 10

VIIIServices forNonCustodial Parents ofWork First Recipient Children 11

IX Exemption from the Work Requirement 11

X Work First Family Centered Practice 12

XI Americans with Disabilities Act 14

Attachments

Family Violence Option 1 g
Memorandum ofAgreement with Employment Securities Commission 21
Language Access Plan 23
Transportation Agreement 35

39



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

I CONDITIONS WITHIN THE COUNTY

Currituck County is a45 mile narrow strip of land on the Currituck Sound consisting of a

main land section a section that can be accessed through Virginia or by water a section
accessible by ferry or through Virginia and yet another section accessible by water or by
going through Dare County The Tidewater Virginia area is to the north ofCurrituck and
Dare County is to the south These areas as well as Pasquotank County which is to the west
ofCurrituck provide a majority ofthe employment for Currituck residents Dare County
offers agreat deal of9 month employment as well as some year round employment for
Currituck residents

Curritucks county demographics regarding the real property tax base makes Currituck

appear to be awealthy county and in fact we do have a growing number of middle and
upper income people moving to the county for the rural atmosphere and lower property
taxes At the same time we have an impoverished elderly population and many young
families lured here by the belief that there are abundant jobs and proximity to the beaches

Many ofthese families are not selfsufficient and must have help from DSS as soonas they
arrive The cost of housing has increased tremendously over the last couple ofyears EIC
assistance is stretched thin and difficult to obtain and so maintaining living expenses has
become increasingly more difficult

In Currituck there is not an abundance offull time year round employment that offers
benefits The school system and county government are the largest employers in the
county currently A majority ofthe employment opportunities available are retail
convenience stores labor restaurant work and child care Most ofthese jobs require
weekend and evening work and pay on which it is difficult to become selfsufficient After
hours child care is available in only a handful ofhomes and transportation is difficult for
those without adrivers license and car since very few alternatives are available in the

evenings and on weekends Currituck is a growing county however with apush to bring in
more business and industry The resort areas season continues to last longer allowing more
residents yearlongemployment

II PLANNING PROCESS

A Planning Committee
1 Janet Taylor county board ofsocial services and board ofcommissioners
2 Sara Massey Albemarle Mental Health
3 Jerry Parks Albemarle Regional Health Services
4 Michael Warren Superintendent Currituck County Public Schools
5 Denauvo Robinson Albemarle Smart Start

6 Wade Denney Employment Security Commission
7 Shannon Kinser Chamber ofCommerce
8 Ray Scaffa College ofthe Albemarle
9 Mary Jane WilsonParsons Hopeline

40



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 4
20102011 BIENNIUM

10 Nancy Rouson Employment Services Worker Currituck Co DSS
11 Christal Berry IMC Supervisor Currituck Co DSS
12 Carla Mebane Social Work Supervisor Currituck Co DSS

We invited representatives from the faith community and also 2 former recipients however theydid not attend

B Public Comment
The proposed county Work First Plan Biennium 20102011 wasposted in the Currituck
County Judicial Center and the Currituck County Library with an explanation regardinghow to make comments and suggestions The public comment period was posted on the
government access channel informing the public about where the plan is posted the
dates it will be posted and how to make comments The public comment period lasted
November 21 2008December 1 2008

C Planning Development
The committee had an initial meeting at the Currituck County DSS building During this
meeting the purpose ofWork First was discussed with an emphasis on the program as a

program that must utilize all community resources MRS and the 6 principles were
discussed Our Employment Services Social Worker presented information about the
barriers and challenges clients face Agencies at the table all shared information about
services they have and how these can benefit the clients by addressing the barriers Due
to time and travel constraints other contact for the committee was made through email

III OUTCOMES AND GOALS FOR THE COUNTY

A Meeting Federal Participation Rate
Currituck County will strive to maintain both the all parent and twoparent participation
rates at 50 and 90 respectively
Our participation rates are9086667808070806080508040833333080208010825 120701107333310072590733338073333

B County Developed Outcome Goals
There are no county specific goals in Currituck

IV PLANS TO ACHIEVE THE OUTCOMES AND GOALS

A Activities

Employment is the key to self sufficiency and so Currituck County will utilize all
available resources to tackle any barriers clients may have which may hinder going to
work resources both within and outside ofthe agency It is our hope that clients will be
wrapped in resources and support upon coming in to apply for Work First

Clients are fully assessed upon coming to the agency so that the most suitable assistance
can be provided to them and an individualized plan put into place quickly Areas
addressed in the assessment will include education employment history social support

41



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

medical and mental health history and needs life skills environment and financial
issues The plan and services will be closely coordinated between the client the income
maintenance worker and the employment services social worker The Mutual

Responsibility Agreement II will continue to be developed based on the assessment
and signed as soon after the initial contact with the client as possible We will attempt to

involve other agencies as appropriate to assist the clients with selfsufficiency
Assessment will be apart of most contacts with the clients throughout the life ofthe

case and the plan updated as more information is obtained skills are built and needs

change

All potential applicants are screened upon coming into the agency for benefit diversion
or other short term temporary services that may help alleviate their situation and the
need to go on welfare Benefit diversion is also considered during the application
processing period if the applicants circumstances change The decision to provide
benefit diversion is a team decision involving other staff in the agency that may have had
contact with the potential applicant as well we the WF staff

With each and every client that comes to the agency we will keep interviews
assessments and contacts positive encouraging and focused on strengths as much as

possible The program requirements will of course still be there and sanctions applied
but staff will remain positive and encouraging If clients miss appointments and are not

maintaining contact as required then ahome visit will be made in an effort to be

politely positively and encouragingly assertive about their MRA II program

requirements and how they can best maintain acourse towards self sufficiency

We will have aJob Information Center in the lobby that will have notebooks containing
currentjob listings from ESC large employers and the newspapers This notebook will
be maintained by the Employment Services Social Worker It will be explored with

applicants to show them the jobs that are available in the area requirements of the
various jobs such as education and experience to open discussions about advancement

possibilities with jobs It is our hope that this will broaden their knowledge about job
searching and working show them possibilities and inspire them to examine their
interests and skills This will help lead to a realistic and knowledgebasedplan for the

client highlighted areas ofneed and more importantly areas of strength

We will assist clients with the skills necessary to obtain jobs based on their needs The
ESSW will assist clients in these areas and if more intensive work is needed we have an

in home aide on staff that can work with clients in their homes or conduct groups if the
numbers are there We will assist with job applications and transport to job interviews if
there is no other means available The ESSW will assist with interviewing skills from

hygiene to appropriate attire to attitude and being prepared to answer interview

questions

Assistance with job retention will be available after participants have secured

Employment in the areas ofproblem solving conflict resolution work place
etiquette and other areas that may come up on the job With client permission the

42



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 6
20102011 BIENNIUM

ESSW can assist on the job with job retention issues in an effort to maintain employment
and improve job skills

The ESSW and supervisor meet weekly to discuss cases barriers and suggestions for

meeting challenges with the goal ofproviding timely effective and appropriate services

Coding for cases will also be checked during meetings to make sure they are correct
We will continue to provide employment services to 100 ofour work eligible adults

Applicants will be required to register for First Stop before their application can be

processed Employment Securities Commission has a staff person available weekly
who is available to register applicants and who will also be available to do Job Search
Skills classes

Our local community college College ofthe Albemarle has HRD classes available for

participants They are also willing to offer these classes offcampus as well as computer
skills classes with aminimum of 7 participants who will join the class

Participants can join in parenting classes available at the Cooperative Extension for
children of any age and our local Smart Start Partnership will provide classes to parents
with children ages 35

Our local domestic violence agency Hopeline is available to provide group counseling
sessions based on need They are also available to provide individual counseling to those
who have experienced family violence advocacy in court and shelter if needed
Domestic violence funds provided by the state are partially used to off set the expense to

Hopeline for counseling and shelter

Currituck Chamber ofCommerce is available to provide information to local businesses
about hiring Work First participants and can is some situations offer incentives to the

employers

All staff have shared the responsibility of the success ofour county since we began JOBS
In 1994 and this will continue Coordination takes place regularly between IMC staffand

Employment Services staff to staff cases review services and check coding The
interview for assessing applicants in order to determine eligibility will remain the

responsibility ofthe income maintenance staff and the responsibility for assessing clients
to determine needs whether a WFFA application should be or diversion assistance
offered will remain with the Employment Services Social Worker There is coordination
and communication between WF staff Child Care staff and Child Welfare Services staff
to ensure that clients are receiving all Available services that will assist them towards self

sufficiency The ESSW attends weekly staffings for child welfare services cases and for
cases that WFES and CWS have in common joint home visits and contacts may be
made

B Supportive Services
There are anumber of services available to assist clients Child care assistance is

43



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

7

available at DSS and the Child Care Resource and Referral is another option for
parents to utilize in addressing child care issues Transportation is another issue for
parents We use the regional transportation system as well as aDSS transportation aide
to assist parents with these issues We refer to our domestic violence agency as well as
mental health for counseling needs Our in house in home aide is a tremendous resource
for avariety of needs for both parents and children

V ADMINISTRATIVE

A Authority
Currituck County Department ofSocial Services will retain authority ofthe Work First
program

B Organization

1 Intake

Upon coming to the agency potential applicants are seen by the Employment Services
Social Worker for an assessment ofstrengths and needs to complete the DASTAudit
and to identify appropriate services Ifthe ESSW is not available the social worker
on intake completes the DASTAudit and provides the client with the ESSWs contact
information The ESSW follows up with the applicant if she has not heard from the
client within 3 business days The client then meets with the Income Maintenance
staff tocomplete the WFFA application

2 Emergency Assistance

Applicants for emergency assistance are also seen by the ESSW If she is not
available the client is referred to the social worker on intake All files are maintained
and checked by the ESSW for budget reconciliation purposes The client will see the
Income Maintenance staff for the following programs Food Nutrition Services
MedicaidNCHC Special Assistance Crisis Intervention Program LIEAP and
Medicaid Transportation

3 Employability Assessment
This is completed by the ESSW Ideally this is completed at application or as soonas

possible afterwards More information will be obtained concerning employability
from clients work with other area resources such as College ofthe Albemarle ESC or

Vocational Rehabilitation if available
4 Employment Services

The ESSW provides employment services to all mandatory recipients of WFFA
These begin at application if possible and carry through the life of the case

5 Other Supportive Services
Child care transportation and in home aide services are all available for WFFA
clients After assessing a clients needs the ESSW will make appropriate referrals
Child care referrals go directly to the child care coordinator transportation exceptMedicaid transportation and in home aide services are set up directly through the
ESSW

6 Eligibility Determination
Following ascreening and assessment by the ESSW the income maintenance staff

44



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

8

will complete the eligibility process with applicants We have an income maintenance
caseworker who carries the child only cases and another IMC who maintains all other
Work First cases They complete all necessary reviews and act on changes as they are

reported Employment services and eligibility functions are kept separate but they
maintain avery close working relationship

C First Stop
Clients are referred to the Employment Security Commission for the First Stop process
At each application the WFFA applicants are informed that they must register in order
for their application to be approved We are not currently contracting with the ESC for
any additional services but utilize free services which they offer such as job registration
job search and job placement We have attached our Memorandum ofAgreement with
ESC to this plan

D Child Care
Child care funds are prioritized in the following order
1 Families needing child welfare services child care for child protective services needs
2 Families needing child care to support employment
3 Families needing child care to address developmental needs of children
4 Families needing child welfare services child care due to a family crisis

E Transportation
Transportation remains adifficult problem for clients because ofthe layout of the county
and because employment opportunities are so spread out We will continue to stress the
importance ofpossessing avalid driverslicense insurance and having access to a car

This can be difficult for clients who are just starting on the road to selfsufficiency as they
often do not have the means to purchase acar learn to drive or clear their records ofpast
fines in order toreobtain their license For those who are unable to transport themselves
we will continue to use the coordinated van system or reimburse clients or volunteers for
mileage There are occasions when the Employment Services Social Worker or our

transportation aide will transport clients If clients need assistance with carrepairs fines
or insurance we will evaluate their situation and consider providing the assistance The
transportation system is offering more flexible transportation than it has previously and
with this change clients will more often be able to use the transit system to get to work
We continue to approach civic groups and the faith community concerning having a

network ofvolunteer drivers available to transport clients to work and have approached
other businesses and individuals about donating cars to clients The transportation
challenge will continue to take creative social work practices along with community
effort

F Substance Abuse Services
Substance abuse and mental health issues are problems that are often encountered with
this population Clients are screened at intake by the ESSW or intake worker using the
DASTAudit tool for substance issues The Behavioral Indicators Checklist may be used
at any contact with the client if it is felt that this is warranted If a score is positive on the
tools clients are referred to Albemarle Mental Health where there is a QPSA on staff to

45



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN q
20102011 BIENNIUM

conduct a SUDDS assessments We attempt to put into place treatment recommendations
QPSA makes The Memorandum ofAgreement should be forth coming and will be
forwarded when it is received in our agency

G Family Violence Option
We have an agreement with our local domestic violence agency Hopeline to assist us
with issues surrounding domestic and family violence See attached agreement We
have what we feel is a very good working relationship with this agency and our ESSW
and the Hopeline counselor work closely on clients that they share They offer shelter
services as well as counseling services We utilize our domestiv violence funds partiallyto reimburse Hopeline for these expenses Also included in this agreement is Kids First
an agency that provides counseling to children who have experienced abuse neglect or

family violence

H Maintenance of Effort
Maintenance ofeffort funds are used for staff and activities throughout the agency In
Child Welfare Services there are 33 FTE salaries funded with MOE funds There is also
one FTE income maintenance worker and one social worker II funded TANF child care
transportation and component expenses are funded with MOE funds as well as

Emergency Assistance Clients to be served may be WFFA clients 200 families and
noncustodial parents

I Child Welfare Services
It is estimated that approximately 80 ofour Work First Block Grant will be devoted to
child welfare services Child only cases that are excluded from the work participation
rate will be monitored at least biannually for changes and safety issues Collaboration
between Child Welfare staff and the ESSW is on going and the ESSW sits in on weeklystaffings

VI Emergency Assistance
15000will be available throughout the year to those who are eligible and amaximum of
400 can be dispersed per household per fiscal year Once a family has used its 400
Allotment for the fiscal year they will not be eligible again until the following fiscal yearThe total allocation of funds for Currituck County will be divided into four allotments
Each allotment will be used for one quarter ofthe fiscal year in an effort to have funds
available throughout the year When the allotment for a particular quarter is spent funds
will not be available until the next quarter ofthe fiscal year starts

These funds can be used for a variety of reasons when a family is in an emergency situation
such as evictions utility cut offs transportation and child care crises The primary purposefor the use ofthese funds will be toassist clients in away that must alleviate the emergencyand also to assist them in moving towards self sufficiency remaining offWork First or

keeping ajob The safety of the children in the home must be considered with all
situations when determining if a family is eligible

1 The family must meet the eligibility requirements ofWFFA with income at or below
110 of the federal poverty level

46



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 10
20102011 BIENNIUM

2 Caretaker must be employed have a job starting in 1 month or have some type of
income such as child support SSI and social security disability Proof of income
or employment may be requested

3 As this assistance must alleviate the emergency clients must be able to show that this
is a temporary short term situation and that they have ameans ofmaintaining their
household in the future

4 If an applicant has received Emergency Assistance in the previous 2 fiscal years they
must be able topay 100 towards the amount needed to resolve the emergency If the
amount needed is 150 or less they must be able to apply half

Evaluation for the use ofthese funds will be the primary responsibility of the
Employment Services Social Worker with supervision by the social work supervisor II
A family will be evaluated for the use ofthese funds at the time that they come in to

apply for WFFA and are evaluated for other possible alternatives to WFFA or when they
come in to seek relief for an emergency situation They will be evaluated for and given
referrals for other services as appropriate

VII Services for Families at or Below 200 of the Poverty Level

The county will provide services to families with children when the family is at or below
200 ofthe poverty level and in accordance with the policy outlined in Work First
Policy with the hope ofpreventing them from going on Work First Cash Assitance

The departmentsESSW will provide services to this population Potential families will
be identified through referrals from workers with in the agency through referrals from
other agencies and as self referrals Workers within the agency taking applications for
Food Stamps Medicaid Work First or services will refer clients within this population
to the ESSW if it is felt that they may be appropriate for them Once identified as a

potential client eligibility will be determined by completing the eligibility worksheet and
using the guidelines set forth in DSS Administrative Letter No Economic Independence
1199

Services to be offered to this population will be very similar to those offered to

mandatory Work First clients These services will be job readiness job search case

management counseling home management skills such as budgeting and parenting
resume writing education and referral

Cash assistance according to the federal definition of assistance will not be apart ofthe
services offered therefore on going transportation and child care will not be available
Ifthese services will be short term nonrecurring benefits that will deal with temporary
situations they are allowable The guidelines for these allowances are set forth in DSS
Administrative Letter No Economic Independence 1199 5000 is allocated for 200
services

Services to families at or below 200 ofthe poverty level will be provided only after
Parents who are subject to the work requirement have been provided services The

47



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 11

20102011 BIENNIUM

Employment Services Social Worker will check the mandatory client list weekly to

Assure that all of these clients are being served

VIII Services forNonCustodial Parents of Work First Recipient Children

Currituck County will provide employment related services to noncustodial parents of

Work First children when the noncustodial parentsfamily income is at or below 200

ofthe poverty level and in accordance with the policy outlined in Work First policy

The departments ESSW will provide these services Potential noncustodial parents will

be identified through contact with Child Support Enforcement and through Work First

clients statements The worker will be in close contact with local CSE staff to identify
thosenoncustodial parents who might be eligible Once identified as potential
eligibility will be determined by the worker using the eligibility worksheet and the guide
lines set forth in DSS administrative LetterNo Economic Independence 1199

Services to be offered to this population will be very similar to those offered to

mandatory Work First clients Services to be offered are job readiness job search
counseling case management parenting skills transportation referrals to other services

such as HRD classes and Vocational Rehabilitation budgeting and life skillshome

management resume writing filling out applications dressing for success coaching and

work related expenses

Services to noncustodial parents will be provided only after parents who are subject to

The work requirement have been provided services The ESSW will check the

Mandatory client list weekly to assure that all ofthese clients are being served At the

Point that all are enrollednoncustodial parents can then be served

IX Exemption from the Work Requirement

In the past the State Work First Plan allowed that asingle parent of achild less than one

year old would not be required to comply with work requirements until the child turned

one Standard counties now have the option of whether or not to require this of these

parents Currituck County Department of Social Services has opted to require that single
parents of achild under age one will be exempt from the work requirements until the
child reaches three months ofage unless there are special circumstances which would

necessitate an extension

At the time the child reaches three months of age the parent will be required to meet with

the ESSW to develop aMutual Responsibility Agreement and meet the work

requirements as set forth in the State TANF Plan Individuals who are working while the

child is less than three months old are not eligible for this exemption Under no

circumstances will an individual be exempt for more than a 12 month cumulative lifetime

period

48



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 12
20102011 BIENNIUM

Work First and Family Centered Practice

Our Work First program has embraced the concept of family centered practice Our goal
is to make sure our involvement with our families reflects the six 6 principles of
partnership which are

1 Everyone desires respect
2 Everyone needs to be heard
3 Everyone has strengths
4 Judgments can wait
5 Partners share power
6 Partnership is aprocess

We believe that the family is its own primary source ofinformation Our families are

diverse and have the right to be respected for their special cultural racial ethnic and
religious traditions In addition we understand that the ESSWs judgment can have an

immense impact on aclientslife As aresult we work hard to delay judgments as long
as possible We try to remain focused on the positives

Currituck County Social Services respects the familysright toselfdetermination and
assumes the family has the capacity togrow and change when provided the proper
supportive services We treat our clients with respect and honor their opinions as they
have aright to make their own decisions about their lives

A thorough assessment can be one ofthe strongest tools we use to aid families in
removing barriers to employment and achievingselfsufficiency The purpose ofthe
assessment and planning is to identify the familysstrengths and resources needed to
achieve employment We assess the overall major strengths ofthe family We review the
issues of substance abuse domestic violence etc Family strength can come in the form
of interests hobbies skills talents resources and other capacities both formal and
informal extended community supports If possible we try to assess all family unit
members for strengths

Once the initial screening and assessment have been completed then it is necessary to
engage the family in ongoing assessments We want to ensure that the most appropriate
family case plan is created for the family and that they are connected to the most

appropriate services These strengths and needs are identified on the Mutual
Responsibility Agreement DSS6963A and are also documented in the case record
We try to involve the client in the development oftheir own MRA However it is also
critical that the ESSW assists families in establishing realistic goals in the context oftime
limits work requirements and available resources

The goals ofour planning process are

49



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

13

Identify family strengths to buildupon We talk about the positives in the

family and help them recognize that they CAN do things well We stay positive
and focus on what CAN be done

Help the family learn to identify the specific circumstances that have contributed
to the familysneed for Work First Family Assistance

Help the family learn to identify specific activities that are required and also the
resources that they will need

Planning is aprocess which we try to prepare the family for independence from the
welfare system by the end of the24month time limit where applicable and after longer
periods oftime in some instances

We stress to the family that their assessment is an ongoing process notaonetime event
It is initially done at application but wereassess as needed The ESSW reviews existing
case information on the family in order to help focus on the familysstrengths and needs
and also prevent the need to ask for information already available She uses open ended
questions which allows the participant the opportunity to really feel heard When one

feels heard and understood defensiveness and resistance are unnecessary and solutions
can be sought This whole process hopefully creates apartnership between the ESSW
and the client

To help families achieve selfsufficiency the ESSW will also identify the familys
immediate shortterm and longterm goals and resources So after assessing strengths
an assessment ofresources will occur with an identification of available agency and

community resources needed to assist with transition from Work First to employment and
selfsufficiency The ESSW always considers the familyscomfort in sharing their
personal information As previously stated building rapport with families will encourage
open communication and establish the partnership necessary to recommend activities that
will lead toselfsufficiency

The ESSW and the family will analyze assessment and planning information together
The assessment and the planning process will hopefully direct families toward attainable
goals We believe that early success in aprogram activity will have a significant effect on

future family effort and accomplishments

As the ESSW becomes better acquainted with the family and aprofessional respectful
relationship develops the participant feels the mutual trust and shared responsibility We
try to remember that our clients do not owe us their cooperation we must earn it As a

result the familyscourse to achievingselfsufficiency will become more clearly defined

The family is the first resource we look at as the ESSW and the participant explore
transportation childcare and other supportive service needs Whenever possible our

participants are given the responsibility to identify their needed services and resources
The ESSW helps to set the expectation and also provides the necessary guidance to

50



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 14
20102011 BIENNIUM

enable the family to accomplish this independently The ESSWsrole is to provide
information and guidance which eventually enables families to

Identify and evaluate existing resources

Make informed decisions on the best resources to meet their needs and
Secure the necessary services to support program participation and employment

The ESSW reviews the participantsprogress in program activities at regular intervals
particularly when an individual is enrolled in an activity for an extended period of time
She offers congratulations support if the client is making progress If progress is not

satisfactory to the participant the supervisor or to the ESSW a reassessment is
conducted to determine appropriate solutions while continuing towork with the family

If the family is involved with Child Welfare the ESSW may attend ajoint home visit If
such conditions exist she will inform the family that ajoint visit will be made and will

explain the purpose ofthe joint visit The ESSW also attends the CFT meetings when it
includes a family the ESSW is working with to achieveselfsufficiency During this

meeting or within seven 7 days after the meeting an updated Mutual Responsibility
Agreement MRA will be developed with the family reflecting the decisions from the
CFT meeting

Our motto A crisis can be an opportunity for change It is our job to instill the HOPE

American with Disabilities Act ADA

Currituck County will evaluate individuals with disabilities on acasebycase basis and
will afford them the opportunity to benefit from Work First in the same manner as those
individuals who do not have disabilities

We will continue to

ensure equal access to employment programs for qualified individuals with
disabilities through the provision ofappropriate services

adopt methods ofadministration which do not discriminate against and ensures

equal access and opportunity to qualified individuals with disabilities and

modify policies practices and procedures to provide equal access that allows

qualified individuals with disabilities to participate in and benefit from

employment programs unless doing so would fundamentally change the program
or cause an undue hardship

A Equal Access

51



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 15
20102011 BIENNIUM

To ensure that individuals with disabilities have equal access to employment
programs our Employment Services Social Worker will assess the participants
specific abilities and limitations Individuals with adisability will not be routinely
exempted from the Work First Employment Services program activities The
MRA will reflect the strengths ofthe participant and will include activities such
as aVocational Rehabilitation assessment to ensure the participant receives

necessary services through our Work First program We are currently unable to

make referrals for Functional Assessments due to a lack ofproviders even though
we feel they would be extremely beneficial

B Reasonable Accommodations

Qualified individuals with disabilities will be provided reasonable
accommodations so they have an opportunity to participate in and benefit from
services and programs that are as effective and meaningful as those available to

individuals without disabilities are Note Our Work First applicants or

recipients are not required to ask for reasonable accommodations to receive an

accommodation

When an individual requests an accommodation to participate in the Work First

program or if one is provided without a request the Employment Services
Social Worker will document the disability the difficulty being experienced by
the participant whether the request was granted or denied and what kind of
accommodation was provided if any

C Grievance Procedure

Our grievance procedure will be provided in writing to all individuals who have

requested reasonable accommodations but believe that heshehas not been

adequately accommodated In addition our grievance procedure will be posted in
the Employment Services Social Workersoffice

Our procedure is as follows

The participant will be informed to notify the Work First Employment
Services Social Worker verbally or in writing
Within 7 workdays of the receipt of notification we will have ameeting to

discuss the complaint The participant andor hisher representative will
be notified ofthe meeting and will be encouraged to attend Other

appropriate staff will be present
Within 14 workdays of the date of the meeting we will respond to the

request We will notify the individual ofthe decision in writing within the
14 workdays from date ofthe meeting We will not sanction the individual

during the grievance period for failure to comply with the disputed
activity

52



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN

20102011 BIENNIUM

An MRA will be developed with appropriate activities in which the
individual can complete We will use medical evidence that has been
previously provided by the participant to establish if an individual can

participate in full or limited workactivities

16

If the participant believes heshehas been subjected to discrimination based on

disability and prefers not to use the established grievance procedure as indicated
above heshemay file acomplaint with the Office ofCivil Rights OCR
Contact information is clearly posted in our lobby as well as in worker offices

D Disclosure of a Disability

The Employment Services Social Worker will inform the applicant or recipient
that disclosure of adisability is voluntary However we must inquire about an

individualshealth related limitations to determine the appropriate work

assignments The participant does not have to provide the information However
we will discuss with the Work First participant that

1 An impairment is suspected and disclosure is voluntary

2 Screenings and other resources are available to identify the impairment

3 The benefits of identifying the impairment include accommodations and
services for those individuals with documented disabilities and

4 Ifheshe chooses not to disclose adisability or cooperate with efforts to

identify the disability heshemay be required to participate with work
activities without accommodations

Our Employment Services Social Worker will document in writing when an

individual with a suspected disability refuses to participate with efforts to verify
the disability and chooses to participate in work activities without
accommodation To document this refusal we will include the following
acknowledgement statement on the MRA

Work Firstparticipants name has been informed ofhisher right to be
screenedfor asuspected disability but has chosen to participate without
accommodation Work Firstparticipants name understands thatheshe
will be required to complete assigned activities without accommodations
and may face sanctions forfailure to complete the assigned activities

There are times when identification and treatment of a disability are necessary for
us to administer our program Under these circumstances a participant may be
required to participate in efforts to evaluate asuspected disability and participate
in necessary treatment Those circumstances may include

53



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

17

1 If aparticipant claims to be unable to work or has limited work
capacity the individual may be required to substantiate hisherclaim by
participating in screening and evaluations as agreed on the MRA Failure
to comply may result in asanction ofbenefits in accordance with Section
120 ofthe Work First policy

2 If aparticipant has demonstrated an inability to successfully participatein work activities or employment and our worker has reason to believe this
is due to adisability or work limitation we may require the participant to
be screened or evaluated to establish the necessary services to support the
participant in achieving success in the Work First program If the
screening or evaluation determines that the participant requires treatment
the participant may be required to participate in the necessary treatment as
acondition ofthe MRA Failure to comply may result in a sanction of
benefits in accordance with Section 120 ofthe Work First policy

Individuals with a confirmed disability or those claiming adisability will be
referred to Vocational Rehabilitation VR for ascreening assessment and
evaluation We will include this activity on the MRA and support it with services
such as transportation We will also include that the participant must adhere to
the eligibility rules and recommendations of VR to include the commitment to

selfsufficiency or standard sanction rules will apply

For individuals who have adisability areferral to the Social Security
Administration SSA will be completed We will continue working with the
family to achieveselfsufficiency throughout the referral process In addition the
ESSW will assist the Work First individual in applying for SSI if appropriate

Interpreter Services for LEP Individuals

If an applicant or recipient requires andor asks for an interpreter Currituck Department
of Social Services will provide such services for the applicant or recipient at no charge
We will take reasonable steps to ensure that Limited English Proficiency LEP personshave meaningful access to the programs services and information our agency providesA client has aright to file a complaint if they think that they were treated unfairlybecause they do not speak English well They can file acomplaint for selfor for someone
else Instructions on how to file a complaint are posted in our agency

One of the provisions ofthe Voluntary Compliance Agreement signed with USDHHS
OCR was that each DSS agency develop a Title VI LEP compliance plan to address the
needs ofthis evergrowing population of individuals whose primary language is not
English We have attached acopy ofour plan

54



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN 1 g
20102011 BIENNIUM

FAMILY VIOLENCE OPTION PLAN

Violence in the family is a substantial barrier toselfsufficiency for many people
including some Work First participants Family violence is defined as verbal sexual
emotional psychological andorphysical abuse between or among family members or
intimate partners Recognizing the impact that violence can have upon individuals and
families workers must assure that all individuals seeking assistance are given the
opportunity and services necessary to address the violence North Carolina adopted the
Family Violence Option to assist those participants who are or have been victims of
family violence by providing the necessary tools to address the issues related to the
abuse

Currituck County has adopted this plan to establish the procedures Social Services staff
will follow in dealing with victims of family violence It is essential to the success of this
protocol that open and ongoing communication and cooperation exist among the
agencies involved in the delivery of family violence services This policy will be
reviewed and revised periodically as needed to reflect changing laws policies and
community issues

PROCEDURES

1 NotificationScreeningAssessment
a All Work First applicants will be notified of the Family Violence Option bythe Employment Services Social Worker at intake Thereafter this will be

discussed with them again annually The Notification form DSS6966will be completed with the original going in the participantsfile and a

copy to the client
b Along with notification a screening form DSS6968 will be completed

and filed in the clientsrecord The participant is considered to have
screened positively if 1 or more of the questions are answered
affirmatively If a client screens positively selfdiscloses or there are
indicators of family violence refer the client to Hopeline for further
assessment within 5 days

c Referrals are VOLUNTARY
d Worker can use the referral form provided and must obtain a release of

information DSS6969 prior to making the referral
e Hopeline will administer anindepth assessment form DSS 6965 for

family violence It is the responsibility of the DSS to provide this form to
the domestic violence DV agency They will return an assessment report
within 5 days of conducting the assessment which will address the ability
of the participant to fulfill Work First Requirements activities to remove
barriers recommended time frame to address the violence whether the

55



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN
20102011 BIENNIUM

19

participant is requesting a waiver and the assessor recommendations
The report is to be filed in the clientsfile

f Clients must be reassessed by Hopeline at least every 6 months or at the
end of each waiver period

2 NotificationScreeningAssessment ofTwoParent Households
a Both participants of atwoparent household must be notified of the

Family Violence Option
b DO NOT screen with an individualsspouse or partner present Conduct

these separately
c For twoparent househodseach partnermust be wiing to

participate in the activities deemed necessary to address the
vionce Previous wording Waivers must invoveboth
partners

3 Developing the Mutual Responsibility Agreement
a If the client refused an assessment but family violence is still an issue and

barrier guide the participant towards activities the will address this issue
b If the client did have an assessment develop the MRA with the

recommendations of the DV counselor in mind
c The DV counselor will recommend which requirements if any to waive

As the social worker consider these but keep in mind that the final
decision for waivers rests with the social worker

d Always consider the safety of the victim and family when developing the
MRA

4 Confidentiality
a Confidentiality is always of the utmost importance with any clients

involved with DSS in order to protect their privacy It can be a matter of
safety for clients experiencing family violence

b A release of information must be signed before speaking with another
agency The DV agency will assure that a release has been signed before
they will release information to DSS

c Never release the phone number or address of a victim to anyone
d Do not discuss a victimssituation with anyone who does not need to

know

POINTS TO REMEMBER

1 Assessments are voluntary
2 This is not an exemption Clients must still work on issues and other points in

their MRA
3 Be ready to refer to a shelter or to Hopeline in a crisis situation
4 The 24 month clock can stop This could be a reason for an extension on the

60 month clock
5 If you suspect CPS issues then you are required by law to report this

56



COUNTY WORK FIRST PLAN

20102011 BIENNIUM

6 Sanction clients on a case by case basis and always keep the safety of the

victim and children in mind before sanctioning
7 Notification of options refers assessments waiver determinations MRA

The Currituck County Department of Social Services and Albemarle Hopeline agree to

follow the procedure as described above

Director Albemarle Hopeline

Director Currituck County DSS

Date

Date

20

57



Nov21 2008 720PM CURRITUCK CHAMER 252 453 2349 No4575 P 2

LowerCarrituck Volunteer FireDeaztment
PO Box 207

Crzatady NC 27939

Phozze 252 4532761

Fax 252 4534579

Chiefs FhozAe 252 9826240

November 21 2008

Currituck Gounty Board ofCommissioners

The Lower Currituek Voluzzteer Fire Department Izac currently has two vehicles which vee

use foxbransporting membezs to and from traizang classes to transport supplies toand from fire

scenes and other gezteral uses They have both reached the ezdof their productive life

Therefore the membership ofLower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department lnc request

peztnission to finance through the state aztd local government credit union a rxew vehicle

The vehicle webave selected is aDodge 1500 SLT Quad cab 4x4 The listprice is3670000

howevez we have worked out a deal with Steve White Motors inIickoryNC for2b27200

I have ezaclosed a copy ofthe estimate and the window sticker with all the particulars ofthe

vehicle
We thank you foz your considerativza on this matter

Gina Copeland

President LCVFD

58



Nov21 2008 121PM s2sCURRTUCK CHAMER 252 453 2349wHrTnoTORs

j nirnaooclr n

N o 4 515 P 3aGE 01

RE7tj7reElm
Sox 3385 QlA1rIMAOt P347Q H 70 E 2 Z 008

wy de

HtCKOEtYr NOFRFI CAFtOUNA 28W3
e2s 4843466 t829 3zaaao UCK YOLUNT
way wwwstevewlills3motorscom rf fPO X a
C cmrr ST1na COUNTY ZIP

RIDO6 6UNEBB PNDNE

0 ta40 I

PRICE of cAR 33 50 Q

PLEASt EPCiERMY ORDER FORTHEFOLLOW1Nfl NEW USED

2 4
h013FL

LaQO
ueEnos

l
tXXOR

ttANEE RED 1D7HUr628821386
STOCK ND

2 73
SMESMAN

NQOFCYUNDER5

t undersrandtlrabelow lleeed earvkke oararactandorAceeeorl9a arenonDalmlergxYelsrand will
not4o Aadcedoraoln7rA6cl eY DaMMrCtvysisr Corporattan

NEGATIVE EQUTTY PISCtJNMEA
Pwonasar adulaweeses ana aaoeprs gee negatrva agony erlats In mspuniieae traneatalon and Ea SUES TOTAL
due sabot sa eaer dawna Ananoad

FEDfEfiALIAWRCQItIRisBTHElCLLCWINO QIBGLAIMFFi
TRADE ALLOWANCE

The Atanutedurera wanaayonairs erkle Is explasoyIn Ilqu oaryouraresprnra9Q orIpWO
wansuttios trtokidkl9 arse llnplted warranty sr merctuanRbliMy or Mna end of any mho TRADE AIFFERENt 33949 54
ottllgaton on repeM atea asor ana tears am nn warrarlpea axpnafsod w Impsedmuade ey
Meaallar

OESCRIpTInN Op7RAC1 IN TOTAL
rrw NuKe raoa TYPE

STATE TAX
AglEAQF 8RALNO

PLUS PAYOFF ON TRADE
QunNcE

CSJLOR NQC1l NEWIICENSB RE6ISTPIMmN TRIE F1ECrUN

00 H29OA N 40 69 00
IN6URANCt CtiUERAGE

gMC1UE 3so2s oo

AGENT PwONEe 2 CASH
o i

aosrroNOrwet jl

INS CO
owt

PIAYMENT o6tNgpv

POLICY NO DATES 3 UNPAtp 6AU1N E

TRAMSFERREb9Y DATE IIJ3URAPlCE j4OTHEflPAYOFF INPDREIAJTION CH7lRf3E8
A

TO AMOUtrr N
s IASH sus TO Btcarrcm

ACt70UNT NO
IlEN MFOAtfeA710N

ADDRESS

OTED E3Y

I

TOQADD7QU HROUQH

DATE TIME SALESMAN ADDFIESS

15THERfAS1ECCkDLIEN AMOUAIT 26i7 DJ1TD 11171208
Rlreh9aeT agnssrr theft thlaOrdsrirtclutle9 an tt the t9hl1S Alkf OOfldltlorts C113f0411Ne face end rovweA aide Itenolt11slt this Qrdef aencebartdaupera9tM9e ery prior apranagt
arrtl ffi of ttsa d4q Etereot comprtaeRUse complMe andetcirmlve ealAemmt W esa tersea arrheaprtemsrsi telletlrtE to the audJacs matters oovertad haretr rFTHl9 CRaCR rS
FOR A u8F0VEWICLEHf INoRMATION YOU SEE ON THE FEbERALaflAt7p COMMt55fON WINDOsN RGgM 13 TART OP THBORDERllOSNrA77DN ON THE
wINDtWFaFtM OVERRIDES ANY CONTRARY PROVISIONS IN THt CONTRACT OR 6AiE TfJib QFIGRSHALL NOTBCflstlc BINDING tiNTEL ACCEPTED 9Y

DEAItRORtn9AUTHORIPEO RCPRE3EPTATIVE AND aV TttEEVENT OFATiME9AIE DEALEFI9HA1LNOT @E aD9LIQA7EDTO SELL UICAPPRQVAL OP TH@
TERMS HEREOF 18 QNEN BY A BANK OR FlNANCE COMPANY WIIIINQ W PURCHASE A RETAIL ItISTALLIENTCONTRACT 6EfWEEN THE PAFmEBIdRETO
9AsaE0 ON SUCH TdRM9 Purohiser by hle exacuaon ar thls Ardor csRlReer that he ie of legal ago toemcut9 bading cardrscFs in lhla SfaEe sad eelvlowladgaa anat ae tsas

rasa no terms ana cQnstusms arrd has regelved a trva Dopy oT stile flrdet

1132008AOtTEO 13Y
6 IQ 9 DJR eE E

59



Nov21 20082 721PM szsCURRITUCK CHAMER 252 453 2349wHZTEaTsNo4515 P 4GE sz

llOdgC NtrvV VeAtcle utventory wxTawaOw aucKe rake 1 a3

WINDaW STICKER ose

ZooB M4DELx4R

C DODGEi 500

SLTQID CAB 4X4
TiiC1i oov 1cEITkOIitMAToT

MANUFACTURERSSllllRR7EORETAIL PRICE OK
TilIR MQQRi INCLUDING DEALER RREPATtA7ION

Base Prue 33610

DODGF RAM 1500 Sl QuAD CAi aEX4
Exterior Color Flame Red Gear Coat FacteriarPaint
Lterior Color iHedtum SiBte dray Interior tafor
Inerlor Cloth 4012040Spilt Bench Seat

Engine57liter HEMIRMulti DlsDlacementsnylne
Tranatnlttelont MultiSpeed OverdrveAutomatic
7ranstni5sion

STATIDARDEQUIPMENT UNLESS REitACED 8Y OPTIMA1

EQUIPMENT

FUNCRONAISAFETX FEATURES

Zti GaNon Fuei Tank

Tire Pressure Monitoring Warning LP

ElecShinonth@FlyPftme7Case
Sentry Key Then beterreriC Syster
4 Wheel Dlsc Rr AntlLockBraiCits

Advanced Muit5tage Front Alr Bagsa
Power Rack and Plnlon 5tcetit1g
Front 5tabillzer Bar

592Axle Ratio

800 Amp Meintertance Free Batkttry
IGAmp Aitemator

Var Intermittent Windshield Wipers

IPRERIpRFEATURES

ArCvndlCloning
TiltSteering Column

Speed Control

Power Windows Driver OneTouch

Power Locks

Remote Keyless Entry

qMFM Compact Dlsc Radio

Sirius Satellite Radio

1Year SgrvleQ Provided by Slititl5

For More Information Cafl18885397474
Power Accessory Delay
hear Power Sllding Window

Overhead Console wTr4p Computer
402040Split t3enCh Seat

YesrssntlalsRStainOdorStatlc itesskan Fabric

OOHIAL EQUIPMENT
CUS1omrPretemed Package z6G

Mult1Speed Ovardrive Automatic

Tran9mission
l170

57Utar HEM1lUMulti Displacement

T4Qfne
S 94S

Big Born Badge
34Galion Fuel Tank 75

DESlIHIATION CHARGE 000

TOTAPRICE 3600

httplwwwdodgecomlhostcwindowStickerdovxa1D7HU18288Jtl3826 l1212008

60



Nov21 20081 721PM szsCURR1TUCK CHAMER 252 453 2349wIzTEraroRs

Dodge NewveiceZventoty V4indow Sucker
No 4515 p SkGE 03

Page 2 vI3

Rear Fplding5eat
Roar Underseat Compartment Storage
Front Rear Floor Mats

I2V Auxiliary Povner putteC

Passenger Sfde Sun VISOrwMirror

instrument ClusterwTach
4 Speakers
Passenger Assist Handle
exraERoRYUREs

20x90Alurrteum Wheels

P27560RZ0 BSW AIi Season Tares

Z05MM HD Frant Axe

Power Heated MIITOrS Fofdaway
TrailerTow w4ptnCpnnorWlrng
tog Lamps
Cargo Lamp
FullSize Spare Tire

Floor Covering Carpet
Removable TailgatewCaliper latches
Tinted Giss Windows

AseamtlyrPa1ntIP0tvt Blttry FENTON MI36QURI UBA

VIN1p7NU982B8J2d3826 UVQN398
ne wNaowItSFNwroR war NQ1MTCN fl16Aanm rYIMHOwttWon TMi
va3aceIwi THR RIONT TO IAhttt GIIANt66VRFtOtIrNOlICe NA NAT
rteeafp4EtOR TYf00RAMIGIL tRIt01f1lrtefta nNWoleVaevt nrO hqpce6T
SIR oNiN DRKLS

SFATi ANpIOR LOCflI TAT8 IF ANYtCENBEhNsmftFSAIDoxx
EIJPrLED AND iwTI1LIf13CFION6flND1CCF98aRIIS tiRE Nt7r INCLUOEfl
MIS1RiGC DtaCbUNT Ir nnY IBA3tDtlN71i ORIC OF C0710N5IF
pGIRCHA8E09DARA1111C

58OdrS LLC
TM6YE11CLEt8 MAMJFACTURm Ta ItAEEr SPEGFtC UNffED STATES REOUpAllfi5TM5VBiICIE t3 NOTMANtACTURFOR SAVE OR
REGISTRATIONouT31pEOFTHE 1JWTED STATES

PARTS CONTENT INFCRMATpN

FOR VEHICLES iN THIS CARLINE
usrcANoAPARTS corlTNrw

NOTz PAhT CONTENT GOES NOT INCLUDE FINAL ASSEAl16lY
019TRIBU110N Oft OTWER NONPARTS CQ5T8 I
FOR THIS VEHICLE

fINALASSEMBLY POINT
FENTON MISSOURI USA

COUNTRY OF OFtiCiN
ENGINE MX
TRANSAAISSION U

httpwwwdodgecomhostclwndowStickerdo7vin1D7U828923826 11x12008

61



Nov21 2008 721PM 82SCURRITUCK CHAMER 252 453 2349wzrEMOTORS No4515 P 6E Ba

linage tvewvzcInvenTCny wmaowncer rage 3 of3

cmra

13
AcaMsp wrh op0aw
DGOflOAMddw 1otb1and
wMtelall Qelldsiaer Raaurs roPoAad b
SPAbdfhse 1Aanqonhtobs

1los satimotee wlttJ1Mw

1d rnq 1t nginAa dqr
end belwwn

pa4 20 antlhlphwsy

EstimaadAnnurtuefCoaC

ROf9

NiGrWaY 1PG

17
PorLOlapslUdT SIi0p0UIp at nhtelaa

Aneis

1EaenNuad9lM cadn
saary lIDn14 b nqDeand 12 b

21 rnpohlhrisy

httplwwwdodgecoxaahnstcvvndowStickerdoviuuXD7U18288d1 826 11Z 7A08

s CYE 67 L6CIDYM
DI8PLIllItTPOMR FilEL1J
BPIIUJfOMATiC TRWa

62


	Agenda
	Approval of November 17, 2008 Minutes
	November 17 Minutes

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-55 case analysis

	Resolution authorizing exchange of property Whalehead Section 7
	Whalehead Property

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Approval of Work First Plan 
	Work First Plan

	Lower Currituck Fire Department request to purchase new vehicle
	LCVFD Vehicle


